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EN T A1 

Officers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal Risk M an agement Agency 
Accident and Health Fund 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report
, dated M ay 6, 2004, on our 

consideration of the Fun d's internal control over financial reporting an d our tests of its complian ce with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
M ay 6, 2004 

8550 United Plaza Blvd, Suite 1001 Baton Rouge, LA 70809 Tel: 228.922.4600 Fax: 225.922.4611 



LOUISIANA M U NICIPAL RISK  M ANAG EM ENT AGENCY 

Cash (note 4) 
Investments (note 4) 
Accrued interest receivable 
Accounts receivable 
Reinsurance receivable 

D 2002 

A 

2003 2002 

64,334 

225,531 
82,017 

371,882 

Liabilities: 

Unpaid claims liability (note 3) 
Accounts payable 

Due to affi liates (note 2) 

Total Liabilities 

Accumulated deficit 

See accompan ying notes to finan cial statem ents. 
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1,598,000 
224,824 
358,634 

87,133 
597,332 

1,354 
49,850 

353,934 

$ 1,089,603 

$ 1,552,000 
442,784 

129,298 

2,181,458 2,124,082 

(1,809,576) (1,034,479) 

371,882 $ 1,089,603 



A 

STATEM ENTS O F AND 

IN  ACCUM U LATED DEFICIT 
YEAR S ENDED DECEM BER 31. 2003 AND 2002 

REVENUES: 
Prem ium  incom e 

Investment income (note 4) 

EXPENSES: 

Claims expense (note 3) 
Reinsurance prem ium s 

Service agent fees (note 2) 
Administrative fees (note 2) 
M iscellaneous 

Accumulated deficit, beginning of year 

Accumulated deficit, end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statem ents. 
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2003 2002 

11,292,767 
4.439 

11,297,206 

10,601,046 
686,709 
764,092 

17,129 
3,327 

10,022,449 

26,313 

10,048.762 

9,318,366 
909,319 
607,744 
17,173 
4,992 

10,857,594 

(775,097) (808,832) 

(1,034,479) (225,64 7) 

$ (1,809,576) $ (1,034,479) 



LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK  M A N AGEM ENT AGENCY 

F CASH  FLO W S 
YEARS ENDED DECEM BER 31. 2003 AND 2002 

Cash flows from  operating activities: 
Net loss 

Less adjustment for investment income 
Adjustm ents to reconcile net loss to net 
cash used in operations: 
Change in reinsuran ce receivable 
Chan ge in receivables 
Change in unpaid claim s liability 
Ch an ge in accounts payable, an d 

due to affiliates 

2003 2002 

(775,097) 
(4,439) 

271,917 

(175,681) 
46,000 

(808,832) 
(26,313) 

271,398 
189,429 

11,376 100,876 

Net cash used in operating activities (625,924) (273,442) 

Cash flows from  investing activities: 
Purchase of investm en ts 
Proceeds from  sales/m aturities of investm ents 
Investm ent in ter est received 

Net cash provi ded by investing activities 

N et change in cash 

Cash, beginnin g of year 

Cash, end of year 

See accompan ying notes to financial statem ents. 
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594,883 
8,242 

603,125 

(22,799) 

87,133 

64,334 

(203,756) 
439,457 
40,006 

275,707 

2,265 

84,868 

87,133 



A M UNICIPAL RISK M ANAGEM ENT AGENCY 
ACCIDENT AND H EALT 

TO FINANCIAL STA 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PO LICIES 

(a) Background and Financial Statement Presentation 

Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency (LMRM A) was formed under Louisian a Act No. 
462 of 1979 to provide a program of workers' compensation, accident and health, and public 
liability coverage for its member organizations. In accordan ce with Revised Statutes 33:1341- 
1350, all local governm ent subdivisions in the State of Louisiana are eligible to participate. The 
Acciden t and Health Fun d's (the Fund) gen eral objectives are to formulate, develop, an d 
administer, on behalf of th e m ember local governm en tal subdivisions, a program of interlocal 
risk m an agement, to obtain lower costs for that coverage, an d to develop a comprehensive loss 
control program. Local governmental subdivisions joining the Fund must be members of the 
Louisiana M unicipal Association; a member may withdraw from the Fund by giving proper 
notice. Fun d un derwriting an d rate-setting policies have been established by the Board of th e 
Fun d after consultation with the actu aries. If the assets of the Fund were to be exhausted, 
members would only be responsible for their respective outstanding claims. 

Louisiana Municipal Association (LMA) is an association for the mun icipalities of Louisiana an d 
is incorporated as a nonprofit corporation under the laws of th e State of Louisian a. LM A acts as 
the adm inistrator for the Fund. 

Risk M an agemen t, Inc. (RMI) is a third-party service agent primarily for LMRM A insurance 
funds. RM I, a Louisian a Corp oration, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of LM A. 

Louisiana Municipal Reserve Fun d Agency (LMRFA) was form ed un der Louisian a Revised 
Statutes 33:1349(e). LM RFA consists of interlocal risk management agen cies pooling excess 
funds to provide reinsurance. Adm inistration of the Agency is vested in the Executive Board of 
LM A. Effective Jan uary 1, 2003, LM RFA provides reinsurance for th e Fun d. 

As  of December 3I, 2003 an d 2002, th ere were 64 and 65 participating mun icipalities with a 
total number of participants of approximately 2,329 an d 2,370, respectively. 

Th e various LM RM A Funds, LM A an d RM I are all affi liated through com mon membership and 
management control. Although all of these en tities are related parties, their various retained 
earnings ar e available only to th e individual en tity for its operations. For this reason, each en tity 
is presented as a separate "stand alone" en tity in accordan ce with GASB 10 an d GASB 14. 

(b) Basis of Accounting 
Th e Fund is considered an en terprise fund and, accordingly, uses the accrual m eth od of 
accounting an d the flow of economic resources m easurement focus. The Fun d applies all 
applicable FASB pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 in accoun ting for its 
operations unless those pronoun cements conflict wi th or contradict GASB pronoun cemen ts. 
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~A M UNICIPAL RISK  M ANAGEM ENT A 
HEAL' 

NO TES TO  FINANCIAL STA' 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(c) Investments 
Investments are reported at estimated fair value except for short-term and money market 
investments, consisting primarily of U .S. Treasury obligations with a maturity of one year or less 
at tim e of purchase, which ar e reported at cost. Fair value is based on the last reported sales 
price if available; if not available, fair value is based on estimated fair value. Realized an d 
unrealized gains and losses on investm ents recorded at fair value are included in investm ent 
incom e. Investm ents include m oney m arket accounts, rep urchase agreem ents an d U .S. 
government Agency obligations and U.S. treasury securities. 

(d) Premium Income and Accounts Receivable 
Prem ium s are recognized as income over the term of the policies as they becom e earned. Any 
adjustm en ts to annual premiums are considered to be a change in estimate an d are recogn ized in 
the year they become known. 

Accounts receivable are considered to be fully collectible by management; therefore, no reserve 
for bad debts has been established. 

(e) Unpaid Claims Liability 
The Fund establishes claim s liabilities based on estimates of th e ultim ate cost of claim s 
(including future claim adjustm ent expenses) that have been reported but not settled and of 
claim s that have been incurred but not reported. The len gth of tim e for which such costs must be 
estimated varies dep en ding on th e coverage involved. Estima ted amoun ts of reinsuran ce 
recoverable on un paid claim s are deducted from  th e liability for un paid claim s. Because actual 
claims  costs depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal liability, 
an d damage awards, the process used in computing claims  liability does not necessarily result in 
an exact am oun t. Claims liabilities are recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial an d 
statistical techniques to produce curren t estima tes tha t refieet recen t settlements, claims 
frequen cy, an d other economic an d social factors. A provision for inflation in the calculation of 
estimated future claims  costs is imp licit in the calculation because  relian ce is placed both on 
actual historical data th at reflects past inflation and on oth er factors that are considered to be 
appropriate modifiers of past experien ce. Adjustmen ts to clai/ns liabilities are charged or 
credited to expenses in the period in which they are made. Th e carrying am oun t of liabilities for 
claim s losses and claims  expen ses is presen ted at the estimated claim  amounts in the financial 
statem en ts. 

09 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For th e purposes of the statem en ts of cash flows, cash includes cash in demand dep osit accounts 
with ban ks. Because money markets an d repurchase agr eements are usually pur chased wi th  
m aan'ities of 90 days or m ore or are reinvested continuously, they are classified as investm ents. 

- 6- 



A 

1. SIGNIFICANT 

ACCIDENT AND H EALTH  

A 

(continued) 

(g) Reinsurance 
The Fund uses reinsurance to reduce its exposure to large losses on insured events. Further 
description of the reinsur ance coverage is described in Note 5. Reinsurance perrmts recovery of 
a portion of losses from reinsur ers, although it does not discharge the prim ary liability of the 
Fund as direct insurer of the risks rein sured. Th e Fund does not report reinsur ed risks as 
liabilities unless it is probable that those risks will not be covered by reinsurer s. Claims expense 
consists of claims incurred during the culren t year, adjustments to the accounting estimate of 
prior years' claim s expense and a reduction for claims covered by the reinsur er in accordance 
with the reinsur an ce policy. 

(h) Income Taxes 

The Fund is exempt from federal income taxes under Sections 7701 and 115(1) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. 

(i) Use of Estimates 
M anagement of th e Fun d has m ade a number of estim ates an d assumptions relating to th e 
rep orting of assets and liabilities to prepare these finan cial statenaen ts in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in th e United States of Am erica. Actual results cotdd 
differ from th ose estiroates and assumptions. For example, significant estim ates an d 
assumptions are used in estimating its in sur ance liabilities, fair values of investm en ts an d 
accruals. If future experience differs materially for these estim ates and assumptions, th e 
financial statem ents could be affected. 

LM A an d RM I and LM RFA provide services related to the self-in sur ance funds operated for th e 
benefit of Louisian a mun icipalities. Effective Jan uary 1, 2003, th e LM RFA began  ser ving as th e 
Fund's reinsur er . Th e fees incurred by the Fun d for these services and related balan ces owed are as 
follows: 

2003 2002 
Expen ses: 

Administrative fees - LMA ($.60 per 
person per month) 

Service agent fees - RM I ($25.95 in 2003 
an d $20.25 in 2002 for health an d 
$1.20 for den tal participan ts) 

Reinsurance expense - LMRFA ($20.43 
per person in 2003 for health participants) 

Reinsurance commission - RMI ($3.61 
per person in 2003 for health participan ts 
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3, 

N 

Due to affiliates 
LM A 
LM RFA 
RM I 

2003 2002 

$ 1,394 
240,000 
117,240 

$ 358.3634 

$ 1,454 

127844 

~ 29.298 

Amounts due to LM RFA represent funds borrowed for cash flow purposes. The Board of Trustees 
have authorized up to $500,000 in borrowings which are unsecured and non-interest bearing. See Note 
6. 

The following represents changes in th e Fund's aggregate unpaid claims liabilities for the years en ded 
December 31: 

2003 2002 

(Amounts in thousands) 

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment 
expenses liability at beginning of year $ 1,552 $ 1,552 

Incurred claims and claim adjustment 
expense-provision for insur ed events 10,601 9,318 

Less payments - claims  and claim 
adjustment expen ses 

Unpaid claims liability, en d of year $ 1,598 $ 1,552 

Settled claims have not exceeded aggregate insurance coverages in any of the past tw o fiscal year s. 

- 8- 



GEN 

L  

The Fund must comply with Rule Number 4 of the Comm issioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana. 
According to Rule Number 4, all deposits in financial institutions made by these funds shall be limited 
to institutions in Louisiana unless a higher rate can be obtained in an out-of-state institution. Deposits 
in financial institutions may exceed the federally insur ed am oun t in any one finan cial institution, as 
long as the amount is not in excess of the greater of $500,000 or 5% of the combination of surplus, 
un divided profits and reserves as currently reported by the fm ancial institution. In regard to deposits 
and investm ents, the Fun d is in compliance with these revi sed provisions as of and during the years 
ended December 31, 2003 and 2002. 

All dem and deposits and certificates of deposit are in sured or eollateralized by pledged securities held 
by an agent in the nam e of th e Fund. 

2003 2002 

Insured 
Uninsur ed 

$ 64,334 $ 87,133 

$ 87.133 

Under Rule Num ber 4 of the Commassioner of Insur an ce, State of Louisian a, the Fund m ay invest an y 
surplus m onies in obligations of the U.S. Government an d its agen cies, as well as finan cial institutions. 
In cluded in investm ents are money m arket accoun ts, repur chase agreemen ts, U .S. Government Agency 
obligations an d U.S. Treasury securities. 

The Fun d's investments are categorized below to give an in dication of th e level of risk assumed by the 
Fun d at year -end. Category 1 securities are held by the Fund or its agen t in the Fund's name. Category 
2 includes un insur ed and unregister ed investmen ts for which the securities are held by the broker's or 
dealer's trust departmen t or agent in the Fun d's name. Category 3 includes un insured and unregistered 
investm ents for which the securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by its trust department or 
agent, but not in the Fund's nam e. The amortized cost of the Fund's investm ents are $0 an d $588,662 
at December 31, 2003 an d 2002, respectively. Th e estimated fair value of investm ents by security type 
at December 31, 2003 an d 2002 are as follows: 

M oney market accoun ts an d 
repurchase agr eem en ts 
U.S. Government Agen cy obligations 
U .S. Treasury securities 

- 9- 

2003 

$262,238 
309,422 
25.672 



DEPO SI 

NOTES TO FINAN CIAL ST 

(continued) 
Investment income for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 consists of the following 

2003 2002 

Interest incom e 

Realized gains (losses) - net 
Unrealized losses arising during the year 

C 

6,886 $ 28,032 
(2,447) 648 

$_~ 4.439 __ (2,367) 
$ 26.313 

The Fund and its reinsurers represent a cooperative program for gr oup funding and risk management of 
accident and health claim s of participating Louisian a municipalities. Although premium s billed to the 
participants are determined on an  actuarial basis, th e ultimate liability for claims remains with the 
participants, an d the Fun d has the authority to assess the participan ts to fund any deficits incurred. 

Effective Jan uary 1, 2003, the Fund obtained reinsuran ce from LM RFA provide the followi ng 
coverage: 

Item  I: 

Item  II: 

Annual aggr egate in excess of 125%  of annua l earned norm al premium . 

$900,000 specific losses in excess of $100,000 each an d every loss 

Am oun ts paid to LM RFA were obtained at discoun ted rate compared to what was provided by a 
commercial insurer in prior years. See Note 2 for details on amoun ts paid to LM RFA for reinsur an ce 
coverage. 

- 10 - 
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,TH  

NOTES TO FIN AN CIAL STATEM ENTS 

The Fund's financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of Am erica which contemplate continuation of the Fund as a going 
concern. At December 31, 2003, the Fun d rep orted a deficit of $1,809,576 and incurred net loss of 
$775,097 for the year then ended. The Fund has dep leted its cash and invested assets and has been 
required to borrow from a related party in order to m eet its claim obligations as they become due. 

Th e Fun d has continued to implement premium  rate increases and benefit reductions each year in order 
to meet th e continued increase in claims cost an d medical inflation. M anagement implemen ted 
additional rate increases an d member benefits reductions effective Jan uary 1, 2003 as well as changed 
its reinsurer as meas ures to return the Fun d to profitability . M anagemen t expects that continued 
premium increases an d reductions in covered ben efits will be implemented sufficient to return the Fund 
to profitability an d to eliminate the Fund's deficit over a reasonable period of time. However, no 
assurances can  be given that the Fun d can  achieve near term profitability and cash flow improvement 
or that the deficit can  be eliminated in a manageable period of time. 

Additionally, during 2003, the Board of Tnmtees established a $500,000 lim it in which the Fund could 
borrow operating funds from LM RFA. In a special meeting on M arch 17, 2004, the Board established 
the maximum  borrowings as a trigger to initiate an orderly shutdown of the Fun d. Th e shutdown 
process is expected to require a funding from LM A in order to pay all unrep orted liabilities so that 
participating mun icipalities would not be subjected to a loss un der the program. 

If th e Fun d is un able to meet its obligations as th ey become due and a m an aged shut down  is not 
successfu l, participating member s would become responsible for their respective outstanding claim s 
obligations. The Board has established a plan  to bear the responsibility for all costs related to the shut 
down  process. 
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R en ort on Com vlianee and on Internal Control over Financia 
Reoortin~ Based on an Audit of Financial Statem ents Perform ed 

in Acco 

Officers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagem ent Agency 

Accident and Health Fund 

W e have audited the finan cial statem ents of Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagem ent Agency - Accident an d 
Health  Fun d as of an d for the year ended December 31, 2003, and have issued our report th ereon dated M ay 6, 
2004. W e conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
Am erica an d the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller Gen eral of the United States. 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Fund's financial statem ents are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its complian ce with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts an d 
grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct an d m aterial effect on the determination of fmancial 
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of 
our  audit an d, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our  tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance that are required to be reported un der Government Auditing Standards . 

Internal Control Over  Financial Ren ortin~ 

In planning an d performing our  audit, we considered the Fund's internal control over  financial reporting in order  
to determ ine our  auditing procedur es for the purpose of expressing our  opinion on the financial statem ents an d 
not to provide assur an ce on the internal control over  finan cial reporting. Our  consideration of the internal control 
over financial rep orting would not necessarily disclose all ma ters in the internal control over financial reporting 
that might be ma terial weaknesses. A ma terial weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or 
more of th e internal control componen ts does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatemen ts in 
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited m ay occur an d not be 
detected with in a timely period by employees in the norm al course of performing th eir assigned functions. W e 
noted no ma tters involving the intern al control over finan cial reporting and its operation tha t we consider to be  
ma terial weaknesses. 

This rep ort is intended solely for the inform ~ation an d use of Louisiana M un icipal Risk M anagem ent Agen cy - 
Accident an d Health Fund, th e Louisian a Legislative Auditor's Office and the Louisiana Commissioner of 

-anee and is not intended to be and should not be used by an yone other than these specified parties. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
M ay 6, 2004 
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Postlethw aite &  N etterville 
A Professional Accounting Corporation 

Associaled Offices irl Principal Cilies of lhe United States 

www.pncp~.com 

EPENDENT AUDITOR S' REPORT 

Officers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagem ent Agency 

Public Liability Fund 

W e have audited the accompan ying balan ce sheets of Louisiana M un icipal Risk M anagem ent Agency - 
Public Liability Fun d (a quasi-public organ ization) (the Fund) as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, an d the 
related statements of revenues, expenses an d changes in retained earnings, an d cash flows for the years then 
en ded. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Fun d's managemen t. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statemen ts based on our  audits. 

W e conducted our  audits in accordance with auditing standar ds generally accepted in th e United States of 
America an d with Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller Gen eral of the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan an d perform the audits to obtain reasonable assuran ce about wheth er the 
finan cial statem ents are free of m aterial m isstatemen t. An audit includes exam ining, on a test basis, eviden ce 
supporting th e am ounts and disclosures in the financial statem en ts. An audit also includes assessing th e 
accounting principles used an d significant estimates ma de by man agement, as well as evaluating the overall 
finan cial statemen t presen tation. W e believe that our  audits provide a reasonable basis for our  opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above presen t fairly, in all ma terial respects, the financial 
position of Louisian a M unicipal Risk M anagement Agency - Public Liability Fund as of December 31, 2003 
and 2002, an d the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with 
accoun ting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In  accordan ce with Government Auditing Standards , we have also issued a report, dated M ay 6, 2004, on our  
consideration of the Fun d's internal control over financial reporting an d our tests of its complian ce with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an  opinion on th e basic financial statem ents taken  as a 
whole. The supplementary inform ation included on page 11 is presen ted for purposes of additional an alysis 
and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The information presented for the years en ded 
December 31, 2003 and 2002 has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the 
fmancial statemen ts an d, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic 
finan cial statements taken as a whole. 

M ay 6, 2004 
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Cash (note 4) 
Investments (note 4) 
Deductibles receivable 
Accounts receivable 
Accrued interest receivable 

Reinsurance receivable (note 3) 

BALANCE SHEETS 
;M BER  31. 2003 ANE 

2003 2002 

12,930,575 
254,648 

1,400,829 
137,487 
345,376 

$ 15,068,915 

L IA B IL IT IE S A N D R E T A IN E D E A R N IN G S 

Liabilities: 
Outstanding checks in excess of cash balances 

Unpaid claims liability (note 3) 
Unearned prem ium s 

Due to affiliates - net (note 2) 
Accrued expenses 

Total Liabilities 

Retain ed earnings 

See accompan yin g notes to financial statem ents. 
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284,077 
7,806,000 
1,781,926 
1,316,447 

19,303 

$ 49,784 
12,795,160 
267,443 
582,410 

129,980 
657,280 

$ 14,482,057 

$ 
7,516,000 
1,711,334 
934,296 
23,285 

11,207,753 10,184,915 

3,861,162 4,297,142 

$ 15,068,915 $ 14,482,057 



OF 

REVENUE S 
Prem ium  incom e 

Investment income (note 4) 

Totalrevenues 

EXPENSES 

Claims expense (note 3) 
Administrative fees (note 2) 
Reinsurance premiums (note 2) 
Service agent fees (note 2) 
M iscellaneous 

Total expenses 

N et loss 

Retained earnings, beginnin g of year 

Retained earnings, end of year 

See accom panying notes to financial statem ents 
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2003 2002 

$ 7,799,444 
347.937 

8,147,381 

4,792,845 
925,542 

1,903,973 
936,152 
24,849 

5,949,375 
1,286,423 

7,235,798 

4,423,650 
727,485 

1,496,542 
997,695 
30.805 

8,583,361 7,676,177 

(435,980) (440,379) 

4,297,142 4,737,521 

$ 3.861,162 $ 4,297,142 



A 

C 

ATEM ENTS O F CASH  FLOW S 
ER 31. 2003 AND 

Cash flows from  operating activities: 
Net loss 

Less adjustment for investment income 
Adjustm ents to reconcile net loss to net 

cash used in operations: 
Change in receivables 
Change in unpaid claim s liability 
Change in checks written in excess of cash balances 
Change in accrued expen ses, unearned 
prem ium s an d due to affiliates 

2003 2002 

(435,980) $ (440,379) 
(347,937) (1,286,423) 

(1,117,528) 
290,000 
284,077 

(170,900) 
87,000 

448,761 240,463 

Net cash used in operating activities (878,607) (1,570,239) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Purchases of investm ents 
Proceeds from sales an d m aturities of investments 
Investmen t interest received 
Principal paym ents from note receivable 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net change in cash 

Cash, beginning of year 

Cash, end of year 

See accompan ying notes to financial statem ents. 
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(5,695,442) 
5,285A83 
614,974 

205,015 

(5,855,827) 
6,130,497 
639,458 
396,890 

1,311,018 

(673,592) (259,221) 

49,784 309,005 

49.784 



~A AGEN 
PUBLIC LIABILITY 

ACCOUNTING POLl 

(a) Background and Financial Statement Presentation 

Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency (LMRMA) was formed under Louisiana Act No. 
462 of 1979 to provide a program  of workers' compensation, accident and health, and public liability 
cover age for its m ember organizations. In accordance with Revised Statutes 33:1341-1350, all local 
governm ent subdivisions in the State of Louisian a are eligible to participate. The LM RM A Public 
Liability Fund's (the Fun d) general objectives are to formulate, develop, an d administer, on behalf 
of th e member local governmental subdivi sions, a progr am  of interloc al risk management, to obtain 
lower costs for that coverage, an d to develop a comprehensive loss control program . Loc al 
governmen tal subdivisions joining the Fund must be members of the Louisiana Municipal 
Association; a member may withdraw from the Fund by giving proper notice. Fun d underwriting 
an d rate-setting policies have been established by th e Board of the Fund after consultation with  the 
actuaries. If the assets of the Fun d were to be exhausted, members would only be responsible for 
their respective outstan ding claims. As of December 31, 2003 an d 2002, there were 239 and 201 
participating municipalities, respectively. 

a,) 

(c) 

Louisiana Mun icipal Association (LMA) is an association for the mun icipalities of Louisiana and is 
incorpor ated as a nonprofit corporation under the laws of the State of Louisian a. LM A acts as the 
adminislxator for the Fund. 

Ri sk Man agement, Inc. (RMI) is a third-party service agent primarily for LM RM A insuran ce fun ds. 
RM I, a Louisiana Corporation, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of LM A . 

Louisian a Mun icipal Reserve Fun d Agency (LMRFA) was formed un der Louisian a Revised Statutes 
33:1349(e). LMRFA consists of interloeal risk management agencies pooling excess funds to 
provide reinsuran ce. Administration of th e LM RFA is vested in th e Executive Board of LM A. 
LM RFA reinsures the LM RM A Public Liability Fun d. 

The various LM RM A an d LM RFA Fun ds, LM A an d RM I are all affi liated through common 
membership an d man agement control. Although all of these en tities are related parties, their various 
retained earnings are available only to the individual entity for its operations, For this reason, each 
entity is presented as a separate "stand alone" entity in accordance with GASB 10 an d GASB 14. 

Basis of Accounting 
The Fun d is considered an en terp rise fund an d, accordingly, uses the accrual method of accoun ting 
and the flow of economic resources measur ement foc us. Th e Fun d applies all applicable FASB 
pronouncemen ts issued on or before November 30, 1989 in aeen un ting for its operations un less 
those pronoun cemen ts conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncemen ts. 

Investm ents 

Investments are reported at estim ated fair value except for short-term an d money market 
investm en ts, consisting primarily of U .S. Treasury obligations wi th a ma turity of one year or less at 
tim e of pur chase, which ar e reported at cost. Fair value is based on th e last rep orted sales price if 
available; if not available, fair value is based on estimated fair value. Realized and unrealized gains 
an d losses on investm en ts recorded at fair value are included in investment income. Investm ents 
include money m arket accounts, repur chase agr eem ents, U .S. Governmen t Agen cy obligations an d 
U.S. Treasury securities and are held for long-term  purposes. 
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RISK A 
C 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(d) Premium Income and Accounts Receivable 
Prem iums are recognized as income over the life of the policies as they becom e earned. Any 
adjustments to annual premiums are considered to be a change in estimate and are recognized in the 
year th ey become known. 

Accounts receivable are considered to be fully collectible by management; therefore, no reserve for 
bad debts has been established. 

(e) Unpaid Claims Liability 

The Fund provides liability coverage to members for claims incurred during the ben efit period 
regardless of when the claims are reported to the Fund. The Fund establishes claim s liabilities based 
on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims  (including future claim adjustment expen ses) that have 
been reported but not settled and of claim s th at have been in curred but not reported. Th e length of 
tim e for which such costs must be estima ted varies depending on the coverage involved. Estima ted 
amounts of reinsurance recoverable on unpaid claims  ar e deducted from  the liability for un paid 
claims. Because actual claims  costs depen d on such complex factors as inflation, changes in 
docla'ines of legal liability, and damage awards, the process used in computing claims liability does 
not necessarily result in an  exact amoun t, particularly for coverages such as gen eral liability. Claims  
liabilities are recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques to 
produce curren t estimates that reflect recent settlements, claims frequency, and other economic an d 
social factors. A provision for inflation in th e calculation of estiinated fu ture claims costs is implicit 
in th e calculation bec ause relian ce is placed both on actual historical data th at reflects past inflation 
and on other factors that are considered to be appropriate modifiers of past experience. Adjustm ents 
to claim s liabilities are charged or credited to expense in the period in which they are made. The 
costs associated with  new an d renewal contracts as acquisition costs are imm aterial to the finan cial 
statemen ts and are expen sed when incurred. Th e carrying amoun t of liabilities for claims  losses an d 
claim s expenses is presented at th e estima ted claim amoun ts in the finan cial statements. Claims 
reserves were discounted to 5.4% an d 5.8% at December 31, 2003 an d 2002, respectively. 

09 Statement of Cash Flows 

For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash in cludes cash in dema nd deposit accoun ts 
with banks. Because certificates of deposit, money ma rkets and rep ur chase agreem ents are usually 
pur chased wi th maturities of 90 days or more, they are classified as investm ents. 

(g) Reinsurance 

The Fun d uses reinsurance to reduce its exposur e to large losses on insured events. Reinsur ance 
perm its recovery of a portion of losses from reinsurers, although it does not discharge the primary 
liability of the Fun d as direct in sur er of the risks reinsur ed. Th e Fun d does not rep ort reinsured 
risks as liabilities unless it is probable that those risks  will not be covered by reinsur ers. As of M ay 
1, 1986, LM RFA becam e the rein sur er for th e Fund. 

(h) Income Taxes 

Th e Fund is exempt from federal income taxes un der Sections 7701 and 115(1) of the Internal 
Revenue Cod e. 
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LO UISIANA M U N/C/PAL RISK  M ANAGEM ENT AGEN CY 

N 

C 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(i) Use of Estimates 
M anagement of the Fund has made a number of estim ates and assumptions relating to the reporting 
of assets and liabilities to prep are these financial statements in conform ity with accoun ting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates and assumptions. For example, significan t estimates and assumptions are used in 
estim ating its insuran ce liabilities, fair values of in vestm ents an d accruals. If future experience 
differs m aterially for these estim ates an d assumptions, th e financial statem en ts could be affected. 

Certain item s in th e 2002 finan cial statements have been  reclassified to be comparative to the 2003 
presen tation. 

TY TRAN SACTIO 

(a) Fees and Services 

LM A, RM I and LM RFA provide services related to th e self-insurance funds operated for the benefit 
of Louisian a municipalities. The fees for these services are based on a percen tage of th e respective 
earned standard premiums (ESP) as follows: 

Expenses (an d current fee structure) 
Administrative fee - LM A 

(8.75% of ESP) 
Service agen t - RMI (9% and 12.0% of ESP) 
Reinsuran ce - LM RFA (18.0% of ESP) 

Reinsur an ce recoveries from LM RFA 

Due to affi liates: 
LM A 
RM I 
LM RFA 

2003 2002 

$ 925.542 
$ 936.152 
$_ 1.903.973 
$_ 1.331.655 

$ 727.485 
$ 997.695 
$~ 1.496.542 

1,740.730 

$ 685,542 $ 487,485 
223,138 

630,905 223,673 
$ 1.316~42 $ 934.296 

(b) Note Receivable 

LM A had a variable rate note agreement with the Fund which was secur ed by a building owned by 
LM A . During 2002, LM A rep aid the rem aining balan ce of this note. Th e Fund earned interest of 
$0 an d $16,062 in respect to the note for the years ended December 31, 2003 an d 2002, respectively. 
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LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK M ANAGEM ENT AGENCY 

N OTES TO FINAN CIA L STATEM ENTS 

3. CLAIM S EXPENSE AND UNPAID CLAIM S LIABILITY 

The following represents changes in the aggregate unpaid claims liabilities for the Fund for the years 
ended December 31, 2003 an d 2002: 

2003 2002 
(Amoun ts in thousands) 

Liability for unpaid losses at beginning of year (gross) 
Less: Reinsuran ce recover ables 
Liability for un paid losses at beginning of year (net) 

Net incurred related to: 
Curren t year 
Prior years 
Total incurred 

Net paid related to 
Current year  
Prior years 
Total paid 

Liability for unpaid losses at end of year (gross) 
Rein surance recoverables 
Liability for unpaid losses at end of year (net) 

$ 16,957 
9,441 

__  7,516 

4,094 
699 

4,793 

697 
__ . 3,806 

4,503 

17,653 
9,847 

$ 14,940 
7,511 
7,429 

3,243 
1,001 
4,424 

693 
3,644 
4,337 

16,957 
9,441 

$ 7.516 

/n addition to the un paid claims covered by the Fund's reinsurer, there are $345,376 an d $657,280 of paid 
claim s which are recoverable from  the reinsurer at December 31, 2003 and 2002

, respectively. 

The Fund must comply with Rule Number 4 of the Commissioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana. 

According to Rule Number 4, all deposits in finan cial institutions m ade by th ese agen cies shall be lim ited 
to institutions in Louisian a un less a higher rate can be obtained in an  out-of-state institution. Deposits in 
finan cial in stitu tions m ay exceed the federally insur ed amoun t in an y one finan cial in stitution, as long as 
the amoun t is not in excess of the greater of $500,000 or 5% of the combination of surplus, un divided 
profits an d reserves as currently reported by the financial institution in question. In regard to deposits an d 
investments, th e Fund was in compliance with th ese revi sed provisions as of an d during the period ended 
December 31, 2003 and 2002. 
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FA 

4. DEPO SITS AND 

P 

Insured 
Uninsured 

(continued) 

$ 

$ 

$ 49,784 

Under Rule Number 4 of the Commissioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana, the Fund may invest any 
surplus m onies in obligations of the U .S. Governm ent and its agencies

, as well as finan cial institutions. 
Included in investments are certificates of deposit, money market accoun ts and repurchase agreements. 

M oney m arket accounts 
U .S. Governm en t Agen cy obligations 
U .S. Treasury securities 

$ 71,441 
12,795,462 

63,672 

$ 114,878 
12,614,876 

65,406 

The U.S. Government Agency obligation investments are direct obligations registered in the name of the 
Fun d an d held by the Fund's investm en t agen t. Cash and money markets are collateralized by obligations 
of the U .S. Governm en t registered in th e nam e of an d held by th e Fun d's agen t. 

Included in investm en t balan ces are derivative finan cial investm en ts. These investments may include U
.S. 

Treasury strips, eollateralized mortgage obligations, an d floating rate securities. These derivative 
investments are interest rate sen sitive and, as  a result, could experien ce future market fluctuations. 
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A A 
PUBLIC LIABILITY F 

N OTES TO FINAN 

4. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 

The scheduled contractual m a~ 'ities of investm ents held at December 31, 2003 are shown below . 
Expected maturities will differ from contractu al maturities because borrowers m ay have the right to call or 
prepay obligations with  or without call or paym ent penalties. 

Due in one year 
Due after one year through five years 
Due after five years through ten years 
Due after ten years 

Amortized 
Cost 

$ 71,441 
6,384,807 
2,000,827 
4,015,852 

Estim ated Fair 
V alue 

$ 71,441 
6,594,108 
2,202,469 
4,062,557 

Investment income for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 consists of the following: 

2003 2002 

In terest incom e 
Realized gains - net 
Unrealized gains (losses) arising during the year - net 

$ 622,481 $ 665,989 
80,140 61,809 

( 354,684) 558,625 

During th e years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, LM RFA provided reinsurance to LM ILM A Public 
Liability Fund with the following limits: 

Item I: $5,000,000 annual aggregate excess of 65%  of earn ed normal premitma 

Item II: $400,000 each and every loss in excess of $100,000 each an d every loss 

The Fund and LM RFA represen t a cooperative pr ogram  for group fun ding and risk management of public 
liability claims of participating Louisiana mun icipalities. Although  premiums billed to the participants are 
determ ined on an  actuarial basis, ultimate liability for claim s remains with the participan ts. 

Prior to 1993, Louisiana law limited the liability of the mun icipalities to $500,000 per occurrence. During 
1993, the Louisiana Supreme Court revoked this limit. The above "speeiftc reinsuran ce limits" for the 
Public Liability Fund cover claims up to $500,000. As of November I, 1995, the statutory liability 
increased to $750,000 from $500,000. The Fun d's coverage remains unchanged. 

The following are condensed balan ce sheets for LM RFA at December 31 

Assets 
Liabilities 
Retained Earnings 
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2003 
$ 40,706,398 
( 14,834,265) 
$ 25.872.133 

2002 
$ 39,476,960 
( 14,867,510) 
$ 24.609.450 



 



The table below illuslrates the Funds earned normal premium and investment income compared to related costs and cIaims expense 
(net of loss assumed by reinsurers) incurred by the Fund as of the end of 2003 and as of the end of each of the last nine years. 

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 O) 1996 

ENP and investment 
income $ 8,147 $ 7,236 $ 6,547 $ 6,724 $ 5,923 $ 7,416 $ 8,198 $ 7,729 $ 7,605 $ 7,179 

Operating costs 
unalloeated 3,791 3,253 2,853 2,766 2,438 3,452 3,497 3,499 3,376 3,213 

Estimated incurred 
claims mad claims 
expense, end of 
policy year 4,542 4.686 3,753 2,999 2,988 4,039 4,545 4,583 4,243 3,976 

Paid (cumulative) 
as of: 
End of policy 
year 
One year later 
Two years later 
Three yeats later 
Four yeats later 
Five years later 
Six years later 
Seven years later 
Eight years later 
Nine years later 

Re-estimated incurred 
claims and elatms 
expense: 
End of po licy 
year 
One year later 
Two years later 
Three years later 
Four years later 
Five years later 
Six ye ars later 
Seven ye ars later 
Eight years later 
Nine years later 

697 693 578 499 460 687 655 
1,496 1,358 1,079 1,341 1,354 1,362 

2,450 1,804 2,574 2,528 2,343 
2,357 3,189 3,228 3.146 

3,602 3,604 3,570 
3,870 3,865 

3,963 

4,542 4,686 
4,245 

3,753 
3,812 
3,854 

2,999 
3,225 
3,062 
3,114 

2,988 
3,633 
3,917 
3,991 
4,007 

4,039 
3,950 
4,065 
4,140 
4,281 
4,204 

4,545 
4,545 
3,769 
3,969 
4,136 
4,251 
4,160 

630 
1,379 
2,137 
2,999 
3,432 
3.765 
3,838 
4.022 

4,583 
4,583 
4,583 
3,763 
4,044 
4,062 
4,139 
4,176 

463 
1,216 
2,815 
3,524 
3,696 
4,174 
4,202 
4.390 
4,447 

4,243 
4,243 
4,243 
4,243 
4,117 
4,436 
4,456 
4,570 
4,551 

528 
1,625 
2,482 
3,119 
3,400 
3,510 
3,630 
3,710 
3,786 
3,853 

3,976 
3,976 
3,976 
3,976 
3,976 
3,782 
3,839 
3,853 
3,909 
3,921 

Increase(decrease) in 
estimated inem'red claims 
and expense from 
end of policy 
year 441 101 115 1,019 165 (385) (407) 308 (55) 

(1) Effeclive January 1,1996, the l~md accounted for investments on a fair value basis. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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A Professional Accounting Corporation 

Associated Offices in Principal Cities of the United State~ 

www.pncpa.com 

Renort on Com nliance and on Internal Control Over Financial 
Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statem ents Perform ed 

in Accordance with Governm ent A uditinf Standards 

Offi cers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagem ent Agen cy 

Public Liability Fun d 

W e have audited the financial statem en ts of Louisian a M un icipal Risk M anagem en t Agency - Public Liability 
Fun d as of and for the year en ded December 31, 2003, an d have issued our report th ereon dated M ay 6, 2004. 
W e conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in th e United States of Am eriea 
and the stan dards applicable to th e finan cial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller  Gen eral of the United States. 

As part of obtaining reasonable assuran ce about whether  the Fund's fin an cial statem ents ar e free of m aterial 
misstatemen t, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grants, noneomplian ce with which could have a direct an d material effect on the determ ination of finan cial 
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance wi th those provisions was not an  objective of 
our  audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noneomplianee that are required to be reported un der Government Auditing Standards. 

In plannin g and perform ing our  audit, we considered th e Fund's internal control over finan cial rep orting in  order 
to determine our  auditing procedur es for the purpose of expressing our  opinion on the finan cial statem ents an d 
not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our  consideration of th e internal en ntrol 
over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all maters in the internal control over financial reporting 
that m ight be m aterial weaknesses. A ma terial weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or 
more of the internal control components does not reduce to a 
am oun ts that would be m aterial in relation to th e finan cial 

relatively low level th e risk that mi sstatem en ts in 
statemen ts be ing audited ma y occur an d not be 

detected within a timely period by employees in the norm al cour se of performing their as sign ed functions. W e 
noted no matter s involving th e intern al control over finan cial rep orting an d its operation that we consider to be 
m aterial weaknesses. 

This rep ort is intended solely for the information an d use of Louisian a M un icipal Risk M an agem ent Agen cy - 
Public Liability Fun d, the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Office an d the Louisian a Commissioner of In surance, 
an d is not intended to be an d should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Baton Rouge, Louisian a 
M ay 6, 2004 

-  12- 

8550 United Plaza Bivd, Suite 1001 Baton Rouge, LA 70809 Tel: 225.922.4600 Fax: 225.922.4611 



 



 

RECE VED 
LEG SLATW E" AUDIrOff 

01, JUN 22 AM I1:09 

I"I0 iN 



iA M UNICIP AGEN 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Financial Statem ents 

Balance Sheets 

S 

CO M PENSATIO 

TABLE O F 

Statem ents of Revenues, Expenses and Changes 
in Retained Earnings 

Statem en ts of Cash Flows 

Notes to Fin ancial Statem ents 

Schedule 

Report on Complian ce and on Intern al Control Over Financial 
Rep orting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordan ce with Government Auditing Standards 

Pa~e 

1 

3 

4 

5- 11 



Postlethw aite &  N etterville 
A Professional Accounting Corporalion 

Associated Offices ~n Principal Cilies of the United Slales 

www.pncpa.com 

INDEPEND ENT AUDITOR S' REPORT 

Officers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagem ent Agency 

W orkers' Compensation Fund 

W e have audited the accompan ying balan ce sheets of Louisiana M un icipal Risk M anagem en t Agency - 
W orkers' Compensation Fun d (a quasi-public organization) (the Fund) as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, 
an d the related statements of reven ues, expen ses an d chan ges in retained earnings, and cash flows for the 
years then  ended. These finan cial statements are the responsibility of the Fun d's man agement. Our 
responsibility is to express an  opinion on these finaneial statements based on our audits. 

W e conducted our audits in accordance with auditing stan dards generally accepted in the United States of 
Am erica and with Government Auditing Standards, issued by th e Com ptroller Gen eral of th e United States. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assur an ce about whether the 
financial statements are free of m aterial m isstatem ent. An audit includes exam ining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting th e am oun ts an d disclosures in th e financial statem ents. An  audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used an d significan t estim ates made by m anagem en t, as well as evaluating th e overall 
financial statemen t presentation. W e believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our  opinion. 

In accordan ce with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report, dated M ay 6, 2004, on our 
consideration of the Fund's internal eontrol over financial reporting an d our  tests of its complian ce with 
certain provi sions of laws, regulations, contracts an d gran ts. 

Our  audits were for th e purpose of form ing an opinion on the basic finan cial statem en ts taken  as a whole. 
Th e supplemen tary information included on page 12 is presen ted for purposes of additional an alysis an d is 
not a required part of th e basic financial statem ents. Th e inform ation presen ted for th e years en ded 

December 31, 2003 an d 2002, has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statem en ts an d in our  opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic 
finan cial statements taken  as a whole. 

Baton Rouge, Louisian a 
M ay 6, 2004 

8550 United Plaza Blvd, Suite 1001 Baton Rouge, LA 70809 Tel: 225.922.4600 Fax: 225.922.4611 



LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK  M ANAGEM ENT AGENCY 

Investments (note 4) 
Accounts receivable 

Reinsurance receivable (note 3) 
Accrued interest receivable 

BALANCE SH EETS 
~M BER 31. 2003 AND 

RET 

2003 

30,004,934 
1,834,167 

120,571 
323,161 

32,282,833 

Liabilities: 

Unpaid claims liability (note 3) 
Unearn ed premiums 

Due to affiliates - net (note 2) 
Accounts payable an d accrued expenses 

Retained earnings 

See accompanying notes to financial statem ents. 
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$ 5,384,000 
915,268 
667,598 

1,117,991 

2002 

$ 29,382,241 
1,631,700 
115,824 
329,513 

$ 31,459,278 

$ 4,083,000 
582,562 
260,339 
879,271 

8,084,857 5,805,172 

24,197,976 25,654,106 

$ 32,282,833 $ 31,459,278 



LO UISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK M ANAGEM ENT AGEN CY 
W ORKERS' COM PENSATI 

STATEM E N TS O F REVENUE S. EXP] 

ENDED DECEM BER 3 

RE VE NUES: 

Premium  incom e 

Investment income (note 4) 

Total revenue 

EXPENSES: 

Claims expense (note 3) 
Administrative fees (note 2) 
Service agent fees (note 2) 
Reinsurance premiums (note 2) 
Second Injury Fund assessment 
Office of W orkers' Compensation assessm en t 
M iscellaneous 

Total expenses 

Net (loss) income 

Retained earnings, beginning of year 

Retained earnings, end of year  

See accompan ying notes to financial statements. 
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2003 2002 

4,831,840 

758,255 

5,590,095 

4,698,793 

721,094 
502,801 

576,875 
369,197 
129,202 
48,263 

7,046,225 

4,283,725 
2,527,146 

6,810,871 

2,326,464 
472,958 
540,524 

378,367 
200,626 
52,002 
48,839 

4,019,780 

(1,456,130) 2,791,091 

25,654,106 22,863,015 

$ 24,197,976 $ 25,654,106 



AG EM ENT AGEN 
W  

STATEM ENTS OF CASH  FLOW S 
YEARS END ED DECEM BER 31.2003 AND  2002 

Cash flows from  operating activities: 

Net (loss) income 
Less adjustment for investment income 
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to 
net cash provided by (used in) operations: 
Change in receivables and reinsuran ce receivable 
Chan ge in unpaid claim s liability 
Change in accounts payable, accrued expenses 
unearn ed prem ium s an d due to affiliates 

2003 2002 

$ (1,456,130) 
(758,255) 

(207,214) 
1,301,000 

$ 2,791,091 

(2,527,146) 

(74,066) 
(212,000) 

978,685 957,888 

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (141,914) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Investm ent interest received 
Purchases of investm ents 
Proceeds from  sales and m aturities of investm en ts 

1,567,318 

(10,360,370) 
8,934,966 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 141,914 

Net change in eash 

Cash, begiimin g of year 

Cash, end of year 

See accompan ying notes to finan cial statem ents. 
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935,767 

1,720,809 

(8,860,588) 
6,204,012 



M ANAGEM ENT A 
M PENS 

TO  FINAN CIAL 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACOUNTIN G PO 

(a) Background and Financial Statement Presentation 

Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency (LMRMA) was formed under Louisiana Act No. 
462 of 1979 to provide a program of worker's com pensation, accident an d health, and public liability 
coverage for its member organizations. In accordance with Revised Statutes 33:1341-1350, all loc al 
governm ent subdivisions in the state of Louisiana are eligible to participate. The LM RM A- 
W orkers' Compensation Fund (the Fund) general objectives are to form ulate, develop, an d 
administer, on behalf of the member local governmental subdivisions, a progr am  of interloc al risk 
m an agement, to obtain lower  costs for that cover age, and to develop a comp rehensive loss control 
program. Local governmental subdivisions joining the Fun d must be members of the Louisian a 
M un icipal Association; a m ember may with draw from  the Fun d by giving proper notice. Fund 
un derwriting an d rate-setting policies have been  established by the Board of the Fun d, after 
consultation with the actuaries. If th e assets of the Fund were to be exhausted, members would only 
be responsible for their respective outstanding claim s. As of December 31, 2003 an d 2002, th er e 
were 199 an d 203 participating municipalities, respectively. 

Louisian a Mun icipal Association (LMA) is an association for the municipalities of Louisiana and is 
incorporated as a nonprofit corporation under th e laws of the State of Louisian a. LM A acts as th e 
adm inistrator for LM RM A . 

Risk Man agem ent, Inc. (RMI) is a third-party service agent primarily for LMRMA insurance funds. 
R/vii, a Louisian a Corp ora tion, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of LM A. 

Louisian a Municipal Reserve Fun d Agency (LMRFA) was form ed un der Louisiana Revised Statutes 
33:1349(e). LMRFA consists of interloc al risk managem ent agencies pooling excess funds to 
provide reinsurance. Administration of the Agency is vested in the Executive Board of LM A. 
LM RFA reinsures the LM RM A  W orkers' Compensation Fun d. 

The various LM RM A and LM RFA Fun ds, LM A and RM I are all affi liated through comm on 
membership and management control. Although  all of these entities are related parties, their various 
retained earnings are available only to the individual entity for its operations. For this reason each 
en tity is presented as a separate "stand alone" en tity in accordance with GASB 10 an d 14. 

(b) Basis of Accounting 
Th e Fund is considered an en terprise fun d and, accordingly, uses th e accrual meth od of accoun ting 
an d the flow of economic resources measurement focus. The Fun d applies all applicable FASB 
pronoun cements issued on or before November 30, 1989 in accoun ting for its operations unless 
th ose pronouncem en ts conflict with  or contradict GASB pronoun cem ents. 
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GEN 
W ORK ERS' COM PENSATION FUND 

NO TES TO FIN ANCIAL STATE M ENTS 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACOUNTING POLIC (continued) 

(c) Investments 
Investm ents are reported at estim ated fair value excep t for short-term and m oney m arket 
investm ents, consisting prim arily of U .S. Treasury obligations with a m aturity of one year or less at 
time of purchase, which are reported at cost. Fair value is based on the last reported sales price if 
available; if not available, fair value is based on estim ated fair value. Realized and unrealize d gains 
and losses on investmen ts recorded at fair value are included in investm en t income. In vestm en ts 
include m oney m arket accoun ts, repur chase agreemen ts and U .S. Governm ent Agency and Treasury 
obligations. 

(d) Premium Income and Accounts Receivable 

Premiums are recognized as income over the life of the policies as th ey become earned. Any 
adjustmen ts to annual premiums are considered to be a chan ge in estimate an d are recognized in the 
year they becom e known. 

Accoun ts receivable are considered to be fully collectible by management; therefore, no reserve for 
bad debts has been  established. 

The Fun d provides workers' en mpen sation coverage to members for claims incurred during the 
policy period regardless of when the claims are reported to the Fund. The Fun d establishes claim s 
liabilities based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims (including future claim adjustm ent 
expenses) that have been reported but not settled and of claims that have been incurred but not 
reported. Th e len gth of time for which such costs must be estimated varies depending on the 
liability coverage involved. Estimated amoun ts of reinsurance recoverable on unpaid claims are 
deducted from the liability for unpaid claims. Because actual claims costs depend on such complex 
factors as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal liability, an d damage awards, the process used in 
computing claims liability does not necessarily result in an exact am oun t. Claims liabilities are 
recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques to produce current 
estimates that reflect recent settlem en ts, claim s frequency, an d other econom ic an d social factors. A 
provision for inflation in the calculation of estim ated future claims  costs is imp licit in the 
calculation because relian ce is placed both  on actual historical data that reflects past inflation and on 
other factors that are considered to be appropriate modifiers of past experience. Adjustm ents to 
claims liabilities are charged or credited to expense in the periods in which they are ma de. The 
carrying am oun t of liabilities for claim s losses and claims expense are presented at presen t value in 
the finan cial statemen ts. Th e costs associated with new an d ren ewed contracts and acquisition costs 
are immaterial to th e finan cial statements and are expensed when incurred. Such reserves have been  
discoun ted at 5.4% an d 5.8% at December 31, 2003 an d 2002, respectively. 
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W ORKER S' COM PENSATION FUND 

N OTES TO FINANCIA L STA 

(continued) 

09 Statement of Cash Flows 
For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash includes cash in demand deposit accounts 
with banks. Because m oney m arkets and rep urchase agreem ents are usually purchased with  
maturities of 90 days or m ore, they are classified as investm ents. 

(g) Reinsurance 
The Fund uses reinsurance agreements to reduce its exposure to large losses on in sured events. 
Reinsurance perm its recovery of a portion of losses from  reinsurers, alth ough it does not discharge 
the primary liability of the Fund as the direct insurer of the risks reinsured. Th e Fun d does not 
report reinsured risks as liabilities unless it is probable that those risks will not be covered by 
reinsur ers. A s of M ay 1, 1986, LM RFA becam e th e reinsurer  for th e Fund. 

(h) Income Taxes 

The Fun d is exempt from federal income taxes under Sections 7701 and 115(1) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. 

(i) Insurance Related Assessments 

The Fund is subject to assessments made by the Second Injury Fund and the Office of W orkers' 
Compensation based on benefits paid each year. Th e Fund recognizes these assessm ents as expense 
when related claim benefits are incurred rather than paid. Chan ges in assessment rates are adjusted 
in th e year such inform ation is available. 

(j) Use of Estimates 
M an agement oftbe  Funds has ma de a number of estimates an d assumptions relatin g to th e rep orting 
of assets an d liabilities to prepare these fm aneial statem ents in conformity with  accounting 
principles generally accep ted in the United States of America. Actual results could differ fi'om those 
estimates an d assumptions. For example, sign ificant estima tes an d assumptions are used in 
estimating its insur ance liabilities, fair values of investments and accruals. If future experien ce 
differ s m aterially for these estima tes and assum ptions, th e financial statements could be affected. 

Certain item s in the 2002 finan cial statem en ts have been reclassified to be compara tive to the 2003 
presentation. 
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A M AN A 
M P 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

LM A, ILM I and LM RFA provides services related to the self-insurance funds operated for the benefit of 
Louisiana municipalities. The fees for th ese services are based on a percentage of the respective earned 
standard premiums (ESP) as follows: 

2003 2002 

Expenses (and current fee structure): 
Administrative fee - LMA (8.75% of ESP) $ 721,094 

Service Agent - RMI (6% an d 10.0% of 
ESP, respectively) 

Reinsurance - LMRFA (7.0% of ESP) 
Reinsur ance recoveries from LM RFA 

Due to affiliate: 
LM A 
RM I 
LM RFA 

LIAB 

$ 502,801 

$ 576,875 

$ 444,334 

$ 472.958 

$ 540,524 

$ 378,367 

$ 413.192 

$ (421,094) $ (172,958) 

(246,504) 
$ (667,598) 

(39,385) 
( 47,996) 

The following represents chan ges in th e aggregate liabilities for th e Fun d for theyear s ended December 
31, 2003and 2002: 

2003 2002 
(Amounts in thousan ds) 

Liability for un paid losses at beginning of year (gross) 
Less: Reinsuran ce recoverables 
L/ability for un paid losses at beginning of year (net) 

Net incurred related to 
Current year 
Prior years 
Total incurred 

Net paid related to 
Curren t year 
Prior years 
Total paid 

Liability for unpaid losses at end of year (gross) 
Reinsur ance recoverables 
Liability for unpaid losses at en d of year (net) 
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$ 9,021 
4,938 
4,083 

3,282 
1,416 
4,698 

1,076 
2,321 
3,397 

17,456 
12,072 

$ 5.384 

$ 9,107 
4,812 
4,295 

1,959 
367 

2,326 

643 
1,895 
2,538 

9,021 
4,938 



W ORK ERS' COM PEN SATION FUND 

NOTES TO FIN ANCIAL STATEM E 

3. CLAIM S EXPENSE AND UNPAID CLAIM S LIABILITY (continued) 

In addition to the unpaid claims covered by the reinsurers, there are $120,571 and $115,824 of paid claims 
which are recoverable from th e rein surer at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 

The Fun d's claim s payable have been discounted for December 31, 2003 and 2002, based on th e Fun d's 
anticipated payout patterns and a discount rate assum ption of 5.4%  and 5.8%  which m an agem ent expects 
to approximate the interest earnings over the payout period. The effect of the reserve discounts was 
$1,170,000 and $923,000 at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 

Th e Fund must comply with Rule Number 4 of the Comm issioner of Insur an ce, State of Louisiana. 
According to Rule Number 4, all deposits in financial institutions made by these Fund's shall be limited to 
institu tions in Louisiana unless a higher rate can  be obtain ed in an  out-of-state institu tion. Deposits in 
fmancial institutions may exceed th e federally insur ed amount in any one finan cial institution, as long as 
the amoun t is not in excess of the greater of $500,000 or 5% of the combination of surplus, undivided 
profits and reserves as currently reported by the financial in stitution. In regard to deposits an d 
investm ents, the Fun d is in complian ce with  these revi sed provisions dur ing the years ended December 31, 
2003 and 2002. 

Under Rule Num ber 4 of the Commissioner of In surance, State of Louisian a, the Fund may invest an y 
surplus m onies in obligations of the U .S. Governm ent an d its agencies, as well as financial institu tions. 
In cluded in investm ents ar e money market accounts an d rep urchase agr eements. During 1995, the Fun d 
chan ged its policy of maintaining a cash accoun t into wire-tran sferring cash as needed from  investm ents to 
support disbursements. Consequen tly, a zero cash balan ce is now ma intained. 

Th e Fun d's investm ents are categorized below to give an  indication of the level of risk assum ed by th e 
Fund at year-end. Category 1 securities are held by th e Fund or its agen t in th e Fun d's name. Category  2 
includes uninsur ed an d unregister ed investm en ts for which the securities ar e held by the broker's or 
dealer's trust departm en t or agent in th e Fun d's nam e. Category 3 includes un insured and unregistered 
investm ents for which the secur ities are held by th e broker or dealer, or by its trust dep artmen t or agent, 
but not in the Fund's name. Th e amortized cost of the Fun d's investm ents are $29,217,524 an d 
$27,779,416 at December 31, 2003 an d 2002, respectively. Th e estima ted fair value of investm ents by 
security type at December 31, 2003 an d 2002 are as follows: 

M oney m arket accoun ts 
U .S. Governm ent Agency 
Obligations 

U .S. Treasury obligations 

2003 2002 

$ 1,201,726 $ 1,298,687 

12,770,485 
16,032,723 

11,152,085 
16,931,469 

$ 30,004,934 $ 29,382,241 
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W ORKERS' COM PENSATION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 

Included in investment balances as of Decem ber 31, 2003 and 2002 are derivative investm ents. These 
investm en ts included U.S. Treasury strips, collateralized mortgage obligations, an d floating rate securities. 
These derivative investm ents ar e interest rate sensitive and, as a result, could experien ce future m arket 
value fluctuations. 

Th e scheduled contractual maturities of investments held at Decem ber 31, 2003 ar e shown below . 
Expected maturities will differ from en ntractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or 
prepay obligations with or without call or paym ent penalties. 

Am ortized 
Cost 

Due in one year $ 2,508,958 
Due after one year through five years 10,922,365 

Due after five years through  ten years 11,241,920 
Due after ten  year s 4,544,281 

$ 29,217,524 

Estim ated Fair 
Value 

$ 2,516,416 
11,414,360 
11,378,083 
4,696,075 

$ 30,004,934 

In vestm ent incom e for the years ended December 31, 2003 an d 2002 consists of th e following: 

Inter est incom e 
Realized gain s - net 
Unrealized gains (losses) arising 
during the year 

CE POLICY COVERA 

2003 

$ 

2002 

1,427,935 $ 1,485,246 
145,735 129,178 

(815,415) 912,722 

During the years ended December 31, 2003 an d 2002, LM RFA provided excess reinsurance to the Fund 
with  the following limits: 

Item I: 

~em H: 

$2,000,000 annual aggregate in excess of 80% of earned normal premium  

$2,000,000 each an d every loss in excess of $175,000 each an d every loss 

The Fund and LM RFA represen t a cooperative progr am for gr oup funding an d risk man agemen t of public 
liability, workers' compensation an d acciden t and health claims of participating Louisiana municipalities. 
Although  premiums billed to the participants are determined on an actuarial basis, ultimate liability for 
claim s remain with the participants. 
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A 
W O RK ER S' CO M PENSATIO N  F 

NOTES TO FIN ANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

(continued) 

The follow ing are condensed balance sheets for LM RFA at December 31, 2003 and 2002 

A ssets 

Liabilities 

Retained earnings 

2003 

$ 40,706,398 

( 14,834,265) 

25.872A33 

2002 

$ 39,476,960 

( 14,867,510) 

Beginning January 1, 1995, LM RFA purchased reinsuran ce for workers' compensation claim s from a third 
party reinsurer. The third party provides reinsur ance to LM RFA wi th the following aggregate coverage. 

Item I: $1,000,000 ann ual aggr egate 

Item If: $1,000,000 each and every loss in excess of $50,000 each an d every loss up to $750,000 

The third party rein sur er is only responsible for those claim s incurred subsequent to Jan uary I, 1995 
LM RFA is the reinsurer for the claims incurred during the years prior to January 1, 1995. 



SUP TI 



Increase (decrease) in 
estimated hicurred 
claims and expense 
from ~ d of policy 
year 

2,146 
2,554 

1,700 
1,760 
1,874 

2,184 
2,821 
2,606 
2,600 

1,473 
1,638 
1,792 
1,884 
1,956 

4,621 
1,811 
2,078 
2,051 
2,005 
2,123 

costs and claims 

996 O) 1995 

8,805 $ 8,094 $ 9,506 $ 9,569 

2,836 2,889 3,380 2,991 

4,979 5,811 6,512 6,352 

8|1 
1,377 
1,726 
1,937 
2,037 
2,155 
2,308 

4,909 
5,409 
2,342 
2,311 
2,363 
2,446 
2,539 

725 
1,218 
1~280 
1,376 
1,388 
1,449 
1,482 
1,489 

5,811 
5,811 
5,882 
1,664 
1,601 
1,601 
1,641 
1.632 

1,007 
1,940 
2,276 
2,480 
2,620 
2,693 
2,740 
2,783 
2,850 

6,512 
6,413 
6,413 
6,593 
3,038 
3,031 
3,071 
3,002 
3.028 

819 
1,736 
2,137 
2,456 
2,511 
2,633 
2,671 
2,693 
2,708 
2,713 

6,352 
6,670 
6,670 
6,670 
6,670 
2,906 
2,916 
2,922 
2,897 
2,902 

408 174 416 483 (2,498) (2,440) (4,179) (3,484) (3,450) 

(1) Effective January 1,1996, the Fund accounted for investments on a fair value basis. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Postlethw aite &  N etterville 
A ProfessronaP Accounting Corporation 

Associated O~rlces in Principal Cities o[ fhe United 5fales 

,. www.pn~,pq.com . R eoort on ~om nliance anu on m ternal Control Over Financia 
Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statem ents Perform ed in 

A ccordance w ith Governm ent A uditine Standards 

Offi cers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagem ent Agency 

W orker s' Compensation Fund 

W e have audited the financial statem ents of Louisian a M unicipal Ri sk M anagem ent Agency - W orker s' 
Compen sation Fund as of an d for the year ended December 31, 2003, and have issued our report ther eon 
dated M ay 6, 2004. W e conducted our audit in accordance with  auditing standards generally accepted in th e 
United States of Am erica and the standards applicable to finan cial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller Gen eral of th e United States. 

Compliance 

As part of obtain ing reasonable assurance about whether the Fund's financial statem en ts are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its complian ce with certain provisions of laws, regulations, con tracts an d 
gran ts, noncomplian ce with which could have a direct and m aterial effect on the determ ination of finan cial 
statem en t am oun ts. However, providing an  opinion on complian ce with those provisions was not an  
objective of our audit an d, accordingly, we do not express such an  opinion. The results of our tests disclosed 
no in stan ces of noncomp lian ce th at ar e required to be reported under Govern ment Auditing Standards. 

Internal Control Over Finan cial Reoortin~ 

In planning an d performing our audit, we considered 
order to determ ine our  auditing procedur es for th e 

th e Fun d's internal control over  finan cial reporting in 
purpose of expressing our  opinion on the finan cial 

statemen ts an d not to provide assuran ce on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of 
the internal control over finan cial rep orting would not necessarily disclose all m atters in the intern al control 
over financial reporting ~at might be ma terial weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the 
design or operation of one or more of the intern al control components does not reduce to a relatively low 
level th e risk that miss~temen ts in amoun ts th at would be material in relation to the finan cial statem ents 
being audited m ay oc cur an d not be detected with in a tim ely per iod by employees in the norm al cour se of 
performing their assign ed functions. W e noted no ma tter s involving the internal control over financial 
rep orting an d its operation th at we con sider  to be ma terial weaknesses. 

This report is intended solely for th e in form ation an d use of Louisiana M un icipal Risk M an agem en t Agency - 
W orkers' Compen sation Fund, the Louisian a Legislative Auditor's Office an d th e Commissioner of 
Insurance, State of Louisian a, an d is not inten ded to be an d shoul d not be used by an yone other than th ese 

Baton Rouge, Louisian a 
M ay 6, 2004 

f 
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Postlethw aite &  N etterville 
A Professional Accounling Corporation 

Associated Offices in Principa[ Cities of lhe Uniled Slates 

www.pncpa.com 
DEPENDENT AUDITOR S' REPORT 

Offi cers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal Reserve Fund Agen cy 

W e have audited the accompanying balan ce sheets of Louisiana Municipal Reserve Fun d Agency (a quasi-public 
organization) (the Fun d) as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 and the related statements of revenues, expenses 
and changes in retained earnings, an d cash flows for the years then ended. These finan cial statements ar e the 
responsibility of th e Fund's managem ent. Our responsibility is to express an  opinion on these finan cial 
statem ents based on our audits. 

W e conducted our audits in accordan ce with auditing standards generally accepted in th e United States of 
Am erica an d with Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Th ose standards require that we plan  and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assuran ce about whether th e 
financial statem ents are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, eviden ce 
supporting the amoun ts an d disclosur es in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accoun ting principles used and significan t estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
finan cial statement presentation. W e believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our  opinion, the finan cial statements referred to above presen t fairly, in all m aterial respects, the finan cial 
position of Louisiana M un icipal Reserve Fund Agen cy as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, an d the results of its 
operations an d its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accoun ting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of Am erica. 

In  accordan ce with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report, dated M ay 6, 2004, on our  
consideration of the Fun d's internal control over financial reporting and our  tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts an d grants. 

Our  audits were made for the purpose of forming an  opinion on the basic fman cial statem ents taken  as a whole. 
Th e supplemen tary information included on page 12 is presen ted for purposes of additional analysis an d is not a 
required part of the basic fin ancial statemen ts. Th e information pertaining to th e years ended December 31, 
2003 and 2002 has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial statements 
an d, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic finan cial statemen ts taken as a 
whole. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
M ay 6, 2004 
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Cash (note 4) 
Investments (note 4) 
Accrued interest receivable 
Other receivables 

Due from affiliates (note 2) 
Reinsurance receivable 

RESERVE FUND AGEN CY 

BALAN CE SHEETS 
"M BER 31. 2003 AND 2002 

2003 2002 

94,095 
39,025,011 

412,840 
39,779 

1,117,408 
17,265 

$ 40,706,398 

EAR NIN 

Liabilities: 

Unpaid claims liability (note 3) 
Unearned prem ium s 
Accrued expenses 

Total Liabilities 

Retained earnings 

See accom panying notes to financial statem en ts. 

- 2 - 

$ 14,785,000 
37,711 
11,554 

$ 100,096 
38,211,037 

411,298 
5,604 

526,868 
222,057 

$ 39,476,960 

$ 14,379,000 
32,023 
456,487 

14,834,265 14,867,510 

25,872,133 24,609,450 

$ 40,706,398 $ 39,476,960 



A  

RE SERVE FUND AGENCY 

STATEM ENTS OF RE VENUES, EXPENSES AND CHA NGES IN RE TAINED EARNINGS 
FOR TH E YEAR S ENDED DECEM BER  31. 2003 AND 2002 

RE VE NUES: 
Prem ium  incom e 

Investment income (note 4) 

Total reven ues 

EXPENSES: 

Claims expense (note 3) 
Reinsurance prem ium  
M iscellan eous 

Total expenses 

N et incom e 

Retained earnings, beginning of year 

Retained earnings, end of year 

See accompan yin g notes to financial statem en ts. 
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2003 2002 

$ 3,410,198 
91~547 

4,326,745 

2,928,761 
73,216 
62,085 

3,064,062 

1,959,736 
3,364 ,499 

5,324,235 

3,676,101 

3,738,982 

1,262,683 1,585,253 

24,609,450 23,024,197 

$ 25,872,133 $ 24,609,450 



FUN D 

YEARS ENDED DI 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

N et incom e 

Less adjustment for investment income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net 
cash used in operations: 
Change m due to affiliates, reinsurance 
receivable, other receivables 

Change in unpaid claim s liability 
Change in unearned prem ium s and 

and accrued expenses 

2003 2002 

$ 1,262,683 $ 1,585,253 

(916,547) (3,364,499) 

(419,922) 
406,000 

(1,375,547) 
2,056,000 

440,213 

Net cash used in operating activities (107,031) (658,580) 

Cash flows from  investing activities: 

Pur chases of investm ents 
Proceeds from sales or m aturities of investm ents 

Investm en t interest received 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net chan ge in cash 

Cash, beginnin g of year 

Cash, end of year 

See accompan ying notes to finan cial statements 
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(14,091,988) 
12,323,518 
1,869,500 

101,030 

(6,001) 

100,096 

(10,303,677) 
9,047,078 
1,915,133 

658,534 

(46) 

100,142 

$ 94,095 $ 100,096 



A 

CIP 
[V IE FUN D A 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

LI 

(a) Background and Financial Statement Presentation 

Louisiana Municipal Reserve Fund Agency (LMRFA or the Fund) was formed under Louisiana 
Revised Statutes 33:1349(e). LMRFA consists of interlocal risk management agencies pooling 
excess funds to provide reinsurance. Administration of the Agency is vested in the Executive 
Board of LM A. LMRFA reinsures the Louisian a Municipal Risk Management Agency (LMRMA) 
Public Liability, W orkers' Compensation Fun ds an d Accident and Health Funds. During 2003 and 
2002, LM RFA also reinsures two m un icipalities. 

LM RM A was formed under Louisiana Act No. 462 of 1979 to provide a program of worker's 
compensation, accident and health, an d public liability coverage for its member organ izations. In 
accordan ce with Revised Statutes 33:1341-1350, all local governm ent subdivi sions in the state of 
Louisian a are eligible to participate. The program's gen eral objectives are to formulate, develop, 
an d adm inister , on behalf of the member local governmental subdivisions, a program of interlocal 
risk m anagem ent, to obtain lower  costs for th at cover age, an d to develop a comprehensive loss 
control program. Local governmental subdivisions joining the Fund must be members of the 
Louisian a M un icipal Association; a member may withdraw from the Fun d by giving proper notice. 
Fun d un derwriting an d rate-setting policies have been established by the Board of LM RM A after 
actu arial consultation. If the assets of th e Fun d were to be exhausted, members would only be 
responsible for their respective outstan ding claims. 

Louisiana Mun icipal Association (LMA) is an  association for the municipalities of Louisiana. and is 
incorporated as a non-profit corp oration un der th e laws of the State of Louisian a. LM A acts as the 
adm inistrator for LM RFA . 

Risk Management, Inc. (RM I) is a third-party service agent primarily for LMRMA insurance funds 
and LM RFA. RM I, a Louisian a Corporation, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of LM A . 

Th e various LM RM A Fun ds, LM A, RM I, an d LM RFA are all affi liated through common 
mem bership an d man agement control. Alth ough all of these entities are related parties, their 
various retained earnings are available only to the individual en tity for its operations. For this 
reason each entity is presented as a separate "stan d alone" en tity in accordance with GASB I0 an d 
GASB 14. 

(b) Basis of Accounting 
The Fund is considered an  enterprise fund an d, accordingly, uses th e accrual method of accoun ting 
an d th e flow of economic resour ces m easuremen t focus. The Fund applies all applicable FASB 
pronoun cemen ts issued on or before Novem ber 30, 1989 in accoun tin g for its operations un less 
those pr onoun cemen ts eonflict with  or contradict GASB pronouncements. 
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N CIAL 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(c) Investments 

Investm ents are reported at estim ated fair value except for short-term and money m arket 
investm ents, consisting primarily of U.S. Treasury obligations with a m aturity of one year or less at 
tim e of purchase, which are reported at cost. Fair value is based on the last reported sales price if 
available; if not available, fair value is based on estim ated fair value. Realized and unrealized gains 
and losses on investm ents recorded at fair value are included in investm en t incom e. Investm ents 
include money market accounts, repurchase agreemen ts, an d U.S. Governm en t Agency and 
Treasury obligations. 

(d) Premium Income 
The premium  income of LM RFA collected in the current year is based on a percentage of premium 
of LMRMA workers' compensation, public liability, an d accident and health funds (see note 2). 
Pursuan t to the reinsuran ce agreements, the LM RM A  Funds are responsible for all of LM RFA's 
claims servicing and adm inistrative costs. For the years ended December 31, 2003 an d 2002, 
LM RFA provided reinsuran ce directly to mun icipalities for a total premium of $98,007 and 
$84,827, respectively. The costs associated with new an d renewal contracts, as acquisition costs, 
are imm aterial to the financial statements and are expen sed when incurred. 

(e) Unpaid Claims Liability 
The policy liabilities reinsured by the Fund are for claim s incurred during the benefit period, 
regardless of when  the claims are reported. Th e Fun d establishes claim s liabilities based on 
estimates of the ultima te cost of claims (including future claim adjustm ent expenses) that have been 
rep orted but not settled and of claim s that have been incurred but not reported. Th e length of time 
for which such costs must be estim ated varies depending on the coverage involved. Estimated 
amounts of reinsurance recoverable on un paid claims are deducted from the liability for un paid 
claims. Because actual claims costs dep en d on such complex factors as inflation, chan ges in 
doclrines of legal liability, and dam age awards, the process used in computing claim s liabilities 
does not necessarily result in an exact anaoun t, particularly for coverages such as gen eral liability . 
Claims liabilities are recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques 
to produce current estimates that reflect recen t settlemen ts, claim s frequen cy, an d oth er economic 
and social factors. A provision for inflation in the calculation of estima ted fu ture claim s costs is 
implicit in the calcul ation because relian ce is placed both on actual historical data th at reflects past 
inflation an d on other factors that are considered to be appropriate modifiers of past experien ce. 
Adjustm en ts to claims liabilities are charged or credited to expense in the periods in which they are 
m ade. Th e carrying amoun t of liabilities for claims losses and claims expenses are presen ted at 
present value in th e financial statem ents. Such reserves have been  discounted at 5.4%  and 5.8%  at 
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 

For the purpose of th e statemen ts of cash flows, cash includes cash in demand deposit accoun ts 
with banks. Because certificates of deposit, money markets and rep ur chase agreem en ts are usually 
purchased with ma turities of 90 days or more, they are classified as investm ents (see note 4). 
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LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL 
ERVE FUND AGENCY 

NOTES TO FINAN CIA L STATEM ENTS 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIN G POLICIES (continued) 

(g) Income Taxes 

The Fund is exempt from federal income taxes under Sections 7701 and 115(1) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. 

(h) Use of Estimates 
M anagement of the Fund has made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting 
of assets and liabilities to prepare these finan cial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates and assum ptions. For example, significant estimates and assumptions are used in 
estimating its insurance liabilities, fair values of investments and accruals. If future experien ce 
differs materially for these estimates and assum ptions, the financial statements could be affected. 

2. RELATE D P O 

LM A, RM I, LM RM A an d LM RFA provide services related to the self-insurance funds operated for the 
benefit of Louisian a municipalities. Effective January 1, 2003, th e Fund began  to serve as reinsurer of 
the A&H fun d. Th e fees for th ese services are based on a percentage of the respective earned standard 
prem iums (ESP) or per participant rates as follows: 

Premium  incom e 
LM RM A : 
Public Liability 
W orker s' Compensation 
A& H 

Due from  affi liates: 
LM RM A : 
Public Liability 
W orker s' Compensation 
RM I 
A& H 

Fee 
Basis 2003 2002 

18.0%  ESP 
7.0%  ESP 
$20.43 per 
participan t 

$ 1,903,973 
624,871 
583,513 

1,496,542 
378,367 

$ 3,112,357 $ 1,874,909 

$ 630,905 
246,503 

$ 223,673 
47,995 
255,200 

240.000 

$ 1,117,408 $ 526,868 

Amounts due from the LM RFA Accident and Health Fun d rep resen t borrowings for cash flow needs. The 
Board of trustees of the Fund have authorized borrowings up to $500,000, which are unsecured and non- 
inter est bearing. 
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RESERVE FUND AG ENCY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

3. CLAIM S EXPENSE AND UNPAID  CLAIM S LIABILITY 

The following represents changes in the aggregate unpaid claims liabilities for the Fund for the years 
ended December 31. 2003 and 2002: 

Liability for un paid losses at beginning of year (gross) 
Less: Reinsurance recoverables 

2003 2002 

(Amounts in thousands) 

$ 14,379 $ 12,323 

Liability for un paid losses at beginning of year (net) 14,379 12,323 

Net incurred related to: 
Current year 
Prior years 
Total incurred 

Net paid related to 
Current year 
Prior years 
Total paid 

Liability for unpaid losses at en d of year (gross) 
Rein surance recoverables 
Liability for unpaid losses at end of year (net) 

2,408 
520 

2,928 

2,875 
801 

3,676 

2,522 1,620 
2,522 1,620_  

14,785 14,379 

The Fun d's claims payable have been discounted for December 31, 2003 and 2002 based on the Fund's 
an ticipated payout patterns an d a discount rate assumption of 5.4% and 5.8% , respectively, which 
management expects to approxim ate the interest earnings over the payout period. Th e effect of the reserve 
discoun ts was $4,877,000 an d $5,116,000 at December 31, 2003 an d 2002, respectively. 

LM RFA must comply with  Rule Number 4 of th e Comm issioner of Insuran ce, State of Louisian a. 
According to Rule Num ber 4, all deposits in financial institutions m ade by this fund shall be limited to 
institutions in Louisiana unless a higher rate can  be obtained in an  out-of-state institution. Dep osits in 
finan cial in stitutions m ay exceed the federally insured amount in any one finan cial in stitution, as long as 
the amount is not in excess of the gr eater of $500,000 or 5% of the combination of surplus, un divided 
profits an d reserves as currently rep orted by the finan cial institution. In regard to deposits an d 
investm ents, the Fund was in complian ce with these revised provisions during th e year s ended December 
31, 2003 and 2002. 
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4. DEPOSITSAND 

N 

LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL 
RESERVE FUND AGENC$ 

STA' 

(continued) 

The demand deposits are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk asstun ed at year end. 
"in sur ed" deposits are those balances protected by federal depository insuran ce. "Uninsured" deposits 
are those balances in excess of federal depository  insuran ce or pledged collateral. 

Insur ed 
Uninsured 

2003 2002 

$ 94,095 $ 100,096 

Under Rule Number 4 of the Commissioner of In sur an ce, State of Louisiana, the Fund may invest an y 
surplus monies in obligations of the U .S. Governm ent and its agencies, as well as f'man cial institutions. 
Included in investments are certificates of deposit, money market accounts and repurchase agreemen ts. 

The Fund's investm ents are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the 
Fund at year-end. Category 1 investm ents include securities winch are insured or registered or securities 
held by LM RFA or its agent in LM RFA's nam e. The U.S. Government agency obligation investm ents 
are direct obligations registered in the name of the Fun d an d held by the Fund's investm en t agent. M oney 
market accoun ts are ~ollateralized by obligations of the U.S. Governm ent registered in the name of and 
held by the Fund's agent. Th e amortized cost of the Fund's investm ents are $37,666,733 an d 
$35,972,335 at December 31, 2003 an d 2002, respectively. The estima ted fair value of investments by 
type at December 31, 2003 an d 2002, are as follows: 

M oney market accoun ts 
U .S. Governm en t Agency 
obligations 

U .S. Treasury obligations 

2003 2002 

$ 1,813,347 $ 1,114,241 

30,836,822 
6,374,842 

28,790,024 
8,306,772 

Category 

1 
1 

Included in investment balan ces as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 are der ivative investm ents. These 
investm ents included U.S. Treasury strips, collateralized mortgage obligations, and floating rate 
securities. These derivative investm ents are interest rate sensitive an d, as a result, could experien ce 
future market value fluctuations. 
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NOTES TO FINAN CIAL STATEM ENTS 

4. DEPOSITS AND INVESTM ENTS (continued) 

The scheduled m aturities, at amortized cost and estimated fair value, of securities held were as follows at 
December 31, 2003: 

Due in one year 
Due after one year through five years 
Due after five year s through ten years 
Due after  ten year s 

Am ortized 
Cost 

Estim ated Fair 
Value 

$ 4,049,993 $ 4,084,947 
16,210,991 16,890,569 
8,755,507 9,303,131 
8,650,242 8,746,364 

Investment income for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 consists of the following: 

2003 2002 

Inter est incom e 
Realized gains - net 
Unrealized gains arising during the year 

CO 

$ 1,715,627 
81,345 

(880,425) 

$ 1,825,559 
114,618 

1,424,322 

LM RM A  and LM RFA represen t a cooperative program for group funding an d risk m an agement of public 
liability, workers' compensation, an d group health risks of participating Louisiana municipalities. 
Although  premiums billed to the participants are determined on an actuarial basis, ultimate liability for 
claim s remains with  the participan ts. 
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A M U NICIPAL 
RESERVE FUND AGENCY 

NOTES TO FIN ANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

RE IN SURANCE POLICY CO VERA GE 

Assumed: 

(continued) 

For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, LM RFA provided excess reinsuran ce to LM RM A 
Public Liability, and W orkers' Compensation Funds and effective January 1, 2003, provided excess 
reinsuran ce to LIVIRM A Accident and Health Fund with th e following lim its: 

Item I: $2,000,000 annual aggregate in excess of 80% of earned normal premium 

Item 1I: $2,000,000 each and every  loss in excess of $175,000 each and every loss 

Public Liability Fun d 

Item I: $5,000,000 annual aggregate in excess of 65% of earned norm al premium 

Item II: $400,000 each and every loss in excess of $100,000 each and every loss 

Two million dollar aggr egate before commercial reinsurer is responsible for an y payments. 

As of December 31, 2003 an d 2002, LM RFA also provides reinsuran ce for two m unicipalities for 
workers' compensation claims up to an annual aggr egate am ount ranging from 80%  to 90%  of their 
standar d prem ium . 

LM RFA obtained commercial reinsurance to cover a portion of the workers' compensation medical 
losses for th e periods Jan uary 1, 1995 through December 31, 2001. For the years ended December 31, 
2003 an d 2002, the LM RFA did not renew this reinsur an ce. LMRFA obtained comm ercial reinsurance to 
cover  a portion of th e accident and health  risks assum ed during 2003. 
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SCIIEDULE 

DECEM BER 31 2003 

The table below illustrates the Fund's earned normal premium and inves~nent income colnpared to related costs and claims expense incurred by 
the Fund as of the end of 2003 and as of the end of each of the last nine years. 

ENP and investment 
income 

Operating costs, 
unanocated 

$ 4,327 $ 5,324 

135 63 

1999 1998 g~l~ous~  1996 0) 1995 

4,290 $ 4,586 $ 2,591 $ 4,474 $ 5,004 $ 4,142 $ 4,327 $ 4,443 

294 293 135 407 483 415 427 20 

Estimated incurred 
claims a~d exper~e, 
end of policy year 3,104 3,710 2,309 1,783 1,983 2,302 

Paid (cumulative) as of: 
End of policy year 
One year later 
Two years later 
Three years later 
Four years later 
Five years later 
Six years later 
Seven years later 
Eight years later 
Nine years later 

Re-estimated mcttrred 
claims and claims 
expense: 
End of policy year 
One year later 
Two years later 
Three years later 
Four years l~er 
Five years latex 
Six years later 
Seven years later 
Eight years later 
Nine years later 

~ncrease (decrease) in 
estimated incurred 
claims and expense 
from end of policy 
ye ar 

3,710 
2,656 

413 
1,158 

2,309 
2,305 
3,335 

69 
300 
629 

1,783 
1,624 
1,570 
1,560 

(1,054) 1,026 (223) 

431 
737 
910 
168 

1,983 
2,319 
3,690 
3,842 
3,555 

1,572 

(1) Effective J~L!luary l, 1996, the Fund accounted for invesmlents on a fair value basis. 

See accompanying independent auditors" report. 
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775 
859 
931 
995 

2,302 
2,352 
2,434 
2,167 
2,222 
2,132 

3,901 

140 
140 
252 
555 
571 
750 
755 

3,901 
2,016 
1,906 
1,630 
1,434 
1.556 
1,523 

3,887 3,793 4,144 

69 
247 
650 
1,277 
1.281 
1,281 

3,887 
2,083 
1,367 
1,574 
1,795 
1,796 
1,785 
1,768 

283 
1,289 
1.350 
1,423 
1,585 
1,797 
1,890 

3.793 
2,293 
3,818 
3,367 
3,099 
2,795 
2,739 
2,678 
2,486 

195 
487 
490 
542 
1,155 
1,166 
1,172 
1.312 
1.312 
1,478 

4.144 
4,230 
2,304 
2.010 
2,219 
2,168 
2,282 
2,171 
2,180 
2,579 

(170) (2,378) (2,119) (1,307) (1,565) 



Postlethw aite &  N ettervflle 
A Professional Accounting Corporation 

Associated Offices in Prindpal CllleS of the United States 

www.pncpa.com 

Renort on Com pliance and on Internal Control Over Financial 
Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statem ents Perform ed in 

Offi cers and Trustees 
Lotfisiana M unicipal Reserve Fund Agency 

W e have audited the financial statements of Louisiana Municipal Reserve Fun d Agency (the Fun d) as of and 
for the year ended December 31, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated M ay 6, 2004. W e conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing stan dards generally accepted in the United States of America an d the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. 

Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assur ance about whether the Fun d's finan cial statements are free of m aterial 
m isstatem ent, we perform ed tests of its com pliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of finan cial 
statement amoun ts, However, providing an opinion on complian ce with th ose provisions was not an  
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed 
no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported un der Government Auditing Standards. 

Internal Control Over Financial R 

In planning and perform ing our audit, we considered the Fund's internal control over financial reporting in 
order to determine our  auditing procedur es for the purpose of expressing our  opinion on the finan cial 
statements an d not to provide assurance on th e intern al control over financial reporting. Our  consideration of 
the intern al control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control 
over finan cial reporting th at might be material weaknesses. A m aterial weakness is a condition in which th e 
design or operation of one or more of th e intem al control components does not reduce to a relatively low 
level the risk that misstatements in amoun ts that would be ma terial in relation to the finan cial statements 
being audited ma y occur and not be detected within a tim ely period by employees in the normal course of 
per form ing their assigned fi.metions. W e noted no matters involving the intern al control over fin ancial 
reporting an d its operation th at we consider to be m aterial weaknesses. 

This report is inten ded solely for th e information and use of Louisian a M un icipal Reserve Fun d Agency, th e 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Office an d the Louisiana Commissioner of Insur an ce, an d is not intended to 
be an d should not be used by an yone oth er than th ese specified parties. 

Baton Rouge, Louisian a 
M ay 6, 2004 
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Postlethw aite &  N etterville 
A Professional Accounting Carporafian 

Associated Offices in Principal Cities of lhe Uniled Sfafe~ 

www.pncpa.com 

Offi cers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal Association 

Unenaployment Compensation Fund 

W e have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Louisiana M unicipal Association - Unemployment 
Compensation Fun d (a quasi-public organ ization) (the Fund) as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the 
related statem ents of revenues, expenses and changes in retained earnings, an d cash flows for th e years then 
ended. These financial statem ents are the responsibility of th e Fund's managem ent. Our responsibility is to 
express an  opinion on these finan cial statem ents based on our audits. 

W e conducted our audits in accordan ce with auditing standards gen erally accepted in the United States of 
Am erica and with Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller Gen eral of the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan  and perform th e audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
finan cial statemen ts are flee of m aterial nfisstatement. An audit includes examin ing, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the finan cial statements. An audit also includes assessin g the 
accoun ting prin ciples used an d significant estim ates made by m anagement, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. W e believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the finan cial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Louisian a M un icipal Association - Unemploym ent Compensation Fund as of Decem ber 31, 2003 
an d 2002, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year s then  ended in conform ity with 
accoun ting principles generally accepted in the United States of Am erica. 

In accordan ce with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report, dated M ay 6, 2004, on our  
consideration of the Fund's internal control over finan cial reporting an d our tests of its comp lian ce wi th  
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts an d gran ts. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
M ay 6, 2004 

8550 United Plaza Blvd, Suite 1001 ~ Baton Rouge, LA 70809 ~ Tel: 225.922.4600 * Fax: 225.922.4611 



UNEM PLO YM ENT CO M PEN SATION FUND 

Cash (note 3) 
Investments (note 3) 
Accounts receivable 
Accrued interest receivable 

BALANCE SHEETS 
DECEM BER 31. 2003 AND 2002 

2003 2002 

2,403 
3,508,329 

64,615 

40,105 

$ 3,615,452 

Liabilities: 

Unpaid claims liability (note 4) 
Accru ed expenses 

Retained earn ings 

See accom panying notes to finan cial statem ents 
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$ 100,000 
82,767 

$ 20,861 
3,451,402 

43,517 
41.062 

$ 3,556,842 

$ 100,000 
78,397 

182,767 178,397 

3,432,685 3,378,445 

$ 3,615,452 $ 3,556,842 
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STATEM ENTS OF REVENUES. EXPENSES AND  CH AN GES IN RE TAINED EARNING S 

Prem ium  incom e 
Investm ent incom e 

YEAR S ENDED DECEM BER 31. 2003 AND 2002 

Tot~ revenues 

Claims expense (note 4) 
Service agent fees 
Actuarial end professional fees 
M iscellaneous 

Total expen ses 

NET INCOM E 

Excess funds distribution (note 2) 

Retained earnings, beginning of year 

Retained earnings, end of year 

See accom panying notes to financial statem ents. 
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2003 2002 

242,117 
132,396 

374,513 

277,568 
38,232 

4,473 

320,273 

$ 205,912 
279,577 

485,489 

53,758 
23,489 
27,989 
5,730 

410,966 

54,240 74,523 

$ 3,432,685 

(3,617,000) 

6,920,922 

$ 3,378,445 



LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL ASSO CIATIO N 

Cash flows from  operating activities: 
Net incom e 

Less adjustment for investm ent income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income 
to net cas h used in operations: 
Changes in operating assets an d liabilities: 
Accounts receivable 
Accm ed expenses and dividend payable 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Cas h flows from  investing activities: 
Purchases of investm ents 
Proceeds from sale or m aturity of investm ents 
Interest incom e received 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Cas h flows from  finan cing activities: 
Distribution of excess funds 

Net cash used in financing activities 

Net increas e in cash 

Cas h, beginning of year 

Cas h, en d of year 

See accompan ying notes to finan cial statem ents. 
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2003 2002 

$ 54,240 
(132,396) 

(21,098) 
4,369 

$ 74,523 
(279,577) 

13,831 

(127,304) 

(94,885) (318,527) 

(908,669) 
798,149 
186,947 

(18,458) 

20,861 

2,403 

(1,395,428) 
4,944,404 
303,024 

3,852,000 

(83,527) 

104,388 

$ 20,861 



LOUISIANA M U NICIPAL ASSO CIATION 
M PLOYM ENT COM PEN SATION FUND 

NO TES TO F/NANC/A L STA TEM ENTS 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIN G POLICIES 

(a) Background and Financial Statement Presentation 
Louisiana Municipal Association - Unemployment Compensation Fund (the Fun d) was formed 
under Louisiana Revised Statutes 23:1552. The Fund consists of Louisiana mun icipalities joined 
together in self-insurance agreements with respect to unemploym ent com pensation fund 
insurance. Administration of the Fun d is vested in the Executive Board of Louisiana Municipal 
Association. 

(c) 

Louisiana Municipal Association (LM A) is an association for the mun icipalities of Louisiana an d 
is incorporated as a nonprofit corporation un der the laws of the State of Louisiana. LM A acts as 
the adm inistrator for the Fund. 

As of December 31, 2003, there were approximately 6,600 participan ts and 142 participating 
m unicipalities. As of D ecem ber  31, 2002, there were approxim ately 6,600 participan ts and 136 
participating m un icipalities. 

The Fund an d LM A ar e affiliated through com m on membership and managem ent control. 
Although both of th ese entities are related parties, their equity is available only to the individual 
entity for its operations. For this reason each entity is presented as a separate "stand alone" 
entity in accordan ce with  GASB 10 and GASB 14. 

Basis of Accounting 
The Fun d is considered an enterprise fund an d, accordingly, uses th e accrual method of 
accoun ting and th e flow of economic resources measurement focus. The Fun d applies all 
applicable FASB pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 in accounting for its 
operations unless those pronoun cements conflict or contradict GASB pronoun cements. 

Cas h and Cash Flows 

For the purposes of th e statem ents of cash flows, cash includes cash in dem and deposit accounts 
wi th  banks. Because certificates of dep osit, m oney markets and repur chase agr eements are 
usually pur chased with maturities of 90 days or m ore or are reinvested continuously, th ey are 
classified as investments. 

(d) Investments 
Investm ents are reported at fair value excep t for short-term and money market investm en ts, 
consisting primarily of U.S. Treasury obligations with a maturity of one year or less at time of 
pur chase, which are reported at cost. Fair value is based on the last reported sales price if 
available; if not available, fair value is based on estim ated fair value. Realized an d unrealized 
gains and losses on investm ents recorded at fair value are in cluded in investm ent income. 
In cluded in investm en ts are certificates of dep osit with original m aturities of gr eater than 90 
days, deposits in m oney market accoun ts, certificates of deposit, investm ents in U.S. Governmen t 
Agen cy Obligations and Treasury an d short-term repurchase agr eem ents. 

5 



CIPAL 
UNEM PLOY M ENT CO M PENSATION FUND 

NOTES TO FINANCIA L STATEM ENTS 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Claim s expense consists of estimated am ounts for claim s incurred during the current year and 
adjustments to the aceoan ting estimate of prior years' claims expense. Because the adjustment to 
prior years' loss am ounts represents changes in accounting estimates, these changes are reflected 
in earnings in the period they becom e known. The Fund establishes claim  liabilities based on 
estimates of the ultimate cost of claim s that have been reported, but not yet settled. 

09 Income Taxes 

The Fund is exempt from federal income taxes under Sections 7701 an d 115(1) of the Internal 
Reven ue Code. 

(g) Premium Income and Accounts Receivable 
Prem iums are recognized as income over the life of the policies as they become earned. Any 
adjustments to annual premiums are considered to be a chan ge in estimate and are recognized in 
the year they become known. 

Accoun ts receivable are considered to be fully collectible by management; therefore, no reserve 
for bad debts has been established. 

(h) Use of Estimates 
M anagem ent of th e Fund has m ade a number of estim ates and assumptions relating to th e 
reporting of assets and liabilities to prepare these fman cial statements in conformity with 
accoun ting principles generally accepted in the United States of Am erica. Actual results could 
differ from th ose estimates an d assumptions. For example, sign ificant estim ates an d assump tions 
are used in estimating its insuran ce liabilities, fair values of investm ents and accruals. If future 
experience differs ma terially for th ese estim ates and assumptions, the fin an cial statemen ts could 
be affected. 

In 2002, the LM A board approved a return of $3,617,000 of excess funds which was paid during 2002 
to members of the Fun d. Th is rebate was pro-rated on premium  paym ents for the years 1979 - 2000 
an d paid to those municipalities that wer e members of the Fun d as of December 31, 2001. 
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N STA 

3. CASH  AND  INV ESTM ENTS 

Cash in banks is earried at cost. Certificates of deposit, m oney m arket accounts and repurchase 
agreem ents are included in investm ents as their average maturity is gr eater than 90 days and the 
amounts are reinvested continuously. 

The demand deposits are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed at year end. 
"Insured" deposits are th ose balances protected by federal dep ository insur ance or pledged collateral. 
"Uninsur ed" deposits are th ose balances in excess of federal depository  insuran ce. Bank account 
balan ces an d certificates of deposit as listed below are either insured or secur ed by collateral as 
follows: 

Insur ed 
Uninsured 

2003 2002 

$ 2,403 $ 20,861 

20.861 

Under Rule Num ber 4 of th e Comm issioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana, the Fund m ay invest an y 
surplus m onies in obligations of the U .S. Governm ent and its Agencies, as well as finan cial 
institutions. Included in investm ents are certificates of dep osit, m oney market accoun ts an d repur chase 
agr eem ents. 

The Fun d's investments are categorized as follows to give an  indication of the level of risk assum ed by 
the Fund at year-end. Category  1 securities are held by the Fund or its agent in the Fun d's name. 
Category 2 includes un insur ed an d unregistered investm en ts for which the secur ities are held by the 
broker's or dealer's trust dep artm ent or agent in the Fun d's nam e. Category  3 includes un insur ed an d 
unregistered investm ents for which the securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by its trust 
departm ent or agent, but not in th e Fun d's nam e. 

Th e U.S. Government Agen cy obligation investm ents are direct obligations registered in the name of 
the Fund an d held by the Fun d's investm ent agent. The repur ehase agreement, certificates of deposits, 
cash and m oney market are eollateralized by obligations of th e U.S. Government registered in the nam e 
of an d held by the Fund's agent. 

In cluded in investm ent balances are derivative financial statements. These investments may include 
U.S. Treasury strips, eollateralized m ortgage obligations, an d floating rate securities. Th ese derivative 
investm en ts are interest ra te sensitive and, as a result, could experience m arket fluctuations. 
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LOYM ENT COM PEN SATION FUND 

NO TES 

(continued) 

The amortized cost of the Fund's investments is $3,389,295 and $3,308,312 at December 31, 2003 and 
2002, respectively. Th e estimated fair value for investm ents by type at December 31 was as follows: 

M oney market accounts 
U .S. Govern m ent Agency obligations 
U .S. Treasury securities 

2003 2002 Category 

$ 231,760 
1,244,603 
2,031,966 

$ 127,452 
1,275,292 
2~048,658 

$ 3.508.329 $ 3,45~4~ 2 

The scheduled contractual maturities of investments held at December 3 l, 2003 are shown below. 
Expected maturities will differ from contra ctual maturities because borrowers m ay have the right to 
call or prepay obligations with or with out call or prepaym ent pen alties: 

Due in one year 
Due after one year through five years 
Due after five years through ten years 
Due after ten years 

Am ortized 

Cost 

$ 423,508 
992,428 

1,559,069 
414,290 

Fair 
Estimated 
Value 

$ 3,389,295 $ 3,508,329 

In vestm entincomeforth e year s ended December31,2003and 2002 consisted ofth efollowing: 

2003 2002 

Interest income $ 154,086 
Realized gains - net 2,367 
Unrealized (losses) gains arising during the year (24,057) 

$ 132.396 

- 8- 

$ 209,759 
62,587 
7,231 

$ 279.577 
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4. CLAIM S EXPEN SE AND UNPAID CLAIM S LIABILITY 

The following represents changes in the aggregate unpaid claim s liability for the Ftmd for the years 
en ded December 31, 2003 and 2002: 

Unpaid claims and claims adjustmen t 
expenses liability at beginning of year 

Incurred claims an d claim adjustment 
Expen ses: 
Provision for insured events of the 
curren t year  

Paym en ts: 

Claims and claim adjustmen t expenses 
attributable to insur ed even ts of curren t 

year 
Claims an d claim adjustm ent expenses 
attributable to insured even ts of prior 
years 

Total paym ents 

Total unpaid claims and claim adjustm ent 
expen ses liability at end of year 

- 9- 

2003 2002 

(in thousands) 

100 $ 100 

278 354 

178 291 

100 63 

278 354 
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Ren ort on Com nliance and on Internal Control over Financial 
Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statem ents Perform ed 

in Accordance with Governm ent A uditin~ Standards 

Offi cers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal Association 
Unemploym ent Com pensation Fund 

W e have audited the finan cial statem ents of Louisian a M unicipal Association - Unemploym ent 
Compensation Fund (the Fund) as of an d for the year ended December 31, 2003, an d have issued our report 
thereon dated M ay 6, 2004. W e conducted our  audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of Am erica and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller Gen eral of the United States. 

As part of obtaining reasonable assuran ce about whether the Fun d's financial statem ents are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts artd 
grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct an d material effect on the determ ination of finan cial 
statemen t amounts. However, providing an  opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an  opinion. The results of our tests disclosed 
no instances of noncompliance that ar e required to be reported un der Government Auditing Standards. 

In planning an d perform ing our  audit, we considered the Fund's intem al control over  fm ancial reporting in 
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expr essing our opinion on th e fin ancial 
statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over finan cial reporting. Our consideration of 
th e internal control over  finan cial rep orting would not necessarily disclose all m atters in the internal control 
over financial reporting that might be ma terial weaknesses. A m aterial weakn ess is a condition in which th e 
design or operation of one or more of the intern al control componen ts does not reduce to a relatively low 
level the risk that m isstatements in amoun ts that would be material in relation to th e financial statements 
being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the norm al cour se of 
performing their assigned functions. W e noted no matters involving the internal control over financial 
reporting and its operation that we consider to be ma terial weaknesses. 

This report is intended solely for the inform ation an d use of Louisian a M un icipal Association - 
Unemployment Compensation Fun d, the Louisian a Legislative Auditor's Office and the Commissioner of 
Insur an ce, State of Louisiana, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other th an  these 

M ay 6,2004 

8550 United Plaza Blvd, Suite 1001 Baton Rouge, LA 70809 Tel: 225.922.4600 Fax: 225.922.4611 


